
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 4, 2025 
 

Regular Meeting – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 

LARESHA THORNTON 
 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK DEBBIE SWANSON • TREASURER STAN ELDRIDGE 
TRUSTEES: • KAREN LOVEJOY ROE • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • LARESHA THORNTON 
 
 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
  TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2025 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR FEBRUARY 4, 2025, IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $1,304,402.11 
 
 

4. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
 
 
  NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

1. AMEND THE TOWNSHIP BOARD RULES 
 
 

2. FIRST AMENDMENT TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH UPH YPSILANTI 
PROPERTY, LLC DBA CULVER’S EXTENDING THE APPROVAL PERIOD THROUGH 
AUGUST 15, 2025 

 
 

3. ADOPTION OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY TO OPT-OUT 
OF A DESIGNATED ASSESSOR 

 
 

4. RECOMMENDATION TO APPOINT AMY KEHRER TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
WITH A TERM ENDING 12/31/2026 

 
 

5. BUDGET AMENDMENT #2 
 

 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda  Page 2 February 4, 2025 

 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

• THREE MINUTES PER PERSON 
• ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR 
• PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOMED AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES 

EACH AGENDA ITEM 
 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
   
  
 
 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 

Township Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Debbie Swanson and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: Karen Lovejoy Roe, Gloria Peterson, John Newman II 
and LaResha Thornton 

                 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
Supervisor Stumbo requested and the board had no objections to the following 
changes to the agenda.  

• Fire Department Honors will be postponed until February 18, 2025. 
• Under New Business, item # 5, “and appointment of the March Board 

Members of Review Members” was eliminated since they were appointed on 
December 3, 2024.  

• Item #13, “contingent upon attorney approval” was added. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent prayer. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF DECEMBER 17, 2024 REGULAR MEETING 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve December 17, 2024 minutes. 
 
Trustee Karen Lovejoy Roe requested to pull the minutes and statements and 
checks. She requested her comments about the 12/17/24 minutes be written 
verbatim in the minutes for this meeting. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 2 
 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JANUARY 7, 2025 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,994,167.28 
2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JANUARY 21, 2025 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,403,001.58 
3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR DECEMBER 2024 IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $35,134.73 
4. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR DECEMBER 2024 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,661.05 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Newman to 
approve the Statements and Checks. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe made a motion for the trustees to be given copies of the 
detailed monthly invoice for attorneys McLain and Winters. 
 
A motion was made by Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Thornton. 
 
Lovejoy Roe… yes  Newman…no Peterson…no  Swanson…no 
Stumbo…no   Eldridge…no Thornton…no 
 

C. TREASURER’S REPORT DECEMBER 2024 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Swanson to 
approve December 2024 Treasurer’s Report. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

Legal update was provided by Attorney Winters. (refer to audio) 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 3 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. AMEND THE TOWNSHIP BOARD RULES 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the amendment to the Township Board Rules.  
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

2. AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS TO SELL TOWNSHIP 
OWNED PROPERTY AT 599 E GRAND BLVD 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
approve the authorization to enter in negotiations to sell township owned property at 
599 E Grand Blvd. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

3. AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS TO SELL TOWNSHIP 
OWNED PROPERTY AT 2302 HOLMES RD 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve the authorization to enter in negotiations to sell township owned property at 
2302 Holmes Rd. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

4. AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS TO SELL TOWNSHIP 
OWNED PROPERTY AT 142 DEVONSHIRE RD 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the authorization to enter in negotiations to sell township owned property 
at 142 Devonshire Rd. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 4 
 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. ADOPTION OF 2025 BOARD OF REVIEW SCHEDULE AND APPOINTMENT OF 
THE MARCH BOARD OF REVIEW MEMBERS 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the adoption of 2025 Board of Review Schedule. 

The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC 
NUISANCE AT A PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS 539 KENNEDY AVE; BUDGETED 
IN ACCOUNT #101-729-801.023 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve the authorization for circuit court litigation to abate a public nuisance at a 
property identified as 539 Kennedy Ave. budgeted in account #101-729-801.023. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

7. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC 
NUISANCE AT A PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS 1314 E FOREST AVE; BUDGETED 
IN ACCOUNT #101-729-801.023 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve the authorization for circuit court litigation to abate a public nuisance at a 
property identified as 1314 E Forest Ave., budgeted in account #101-729-801.023. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 5 
 

 
8. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC 

NUISANCE AT A PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS 2277 BRYN MAWR ST; 
BUDGETED IN ACCOUNT #101-729-801.023 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve the authorization for circuit court litigation to abate a public nuisance at a 
property identified as 2277 Bryn Mawr St., budgeted in account #101-729-801.023. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

9. AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH MUNIVATE LLC FOR 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT PLATFORM TO THE BS&A 
OPERATING PROGRAM FOR $14,247.52, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #249-371-
818.000 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve the agreement with Munivate LLC for improvements to the building 
department platform to the BS&A Operating Program for $14,247.52, budgeted in 
line item #249-371-818.000 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

10. AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO THE 2024-25 
WASHTENAW COUNTY SENIOR NUTRITION CONTRACT 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
approve the amendments to the 2024-25 Washtenaw County Senior Nutrition 
Contract. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 6 
 

 
11. AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOU) 

BETWEEN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP AND WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER 
RESOURCE COMMISSION (WCWRC) FOR THEIR ARPA STORMWATER GRANT 
PROGRAM 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
approve the authorization to sign the MOU between Ypsilanti Township and 
Washtenaw County Water Resource Commission (WCWRC) for the ARPA 
Stormwater Grant program. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

12. AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN AGREEMENT FOR THE WASHTENAW COUNTY 
ROAD COMMISSION (WCRC) TO REPLACE THE ELLIS ROAD CULVERT IN THE 
AMOUNT OR $115,500.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-902-981.130 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the authorization to sign agreement for the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission (WCRC) to replace the Ellis Road Culvert in the amount of $115,000.00 
budgeted in line item #101-902-981.130.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

13.   RESOLUTION 2025-01, AUTHORIZING ADMINISTRATION OF FISCAL YEAR 
2024 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING GRANT FROM THE U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (AMERICAN 
CENTER FOR MOBILITY), CONTINGENT UPON ATTORNEY REVIEW 

A motion was made Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve Resolution 2025-01, authorizing administration of fiscal year 2024 
Community Project funding grant from the U.S. Department for Housing and Urban 
Development (American Center for Mobility), contingent upon attorney review. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 7 
 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 

14. RECOMMENDATION FOR APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATES TO THE ZONING 
BOARD OF APPEALS 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
approve the recommendation for appointment for Zoning Board of Appeals. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

15. REQUEST TO DISCUSS STREAMING OF MEETINGS IN OCTOBER 2025 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Swanson to 
approve the request to discuss streaming of meetings in October 2025. 

There were 5 public comments regarding this agenda item. (refer to audio) 

Lovejoy Roe…no  Newman…yes Peterson…yes Swanson…yes 
Stumbo……….yes  Eldridge…..yes Thornton…yes 
 
 
  16. BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Newman to 
approve Budget Amendment #1. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 8 
 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were 4 public comments. (refer to audio) 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Treasurer 
Eldridge. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:34PM 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Trustee Karen Lovejoy Roe’s request for her comments to be included verbatim 
during the meeting: 
 

“Thank you. I had um some changes, and I met with Debbie Swanson, clerk today, 
we had and I think we had a pretty good, fruitful meeting, from my perspective, 
hopefully she feels the same. And um one of the things that was clear, plus going 
through the board policy, is that to. Add anything to or to change the minutes, 
additions or deletions. It seems, it appears, the only thing in the board rules are 
that you have to ask for your comments to be made verbatim. Um I think it was at 
the time, and I think they changed the there's a proposition to change that later, 
but I won't speak to that right now, but um I guess I wasn't aware that with that, 
and I was just kind of following what we'd always done for since I've been on the 
board since 1988 and when someone wants to have the additions or changes to 
the meetings, they add those, or you know, they bring that up. And so I had 
thought I had done that, and it was interpreted, I think, by the clerk's office that 
when I said I wanted to amend, and that probably was the wrong word to use. I 
probably should that I had an addition or a deletion. Um they took that as um I was 
making amendment to the motion to approve the minutes, and that wasn't the 
case. So anyway, today's minutes say that I had made an amendment to include 
the streaming stuff, the conversation that went on informally at end of the 
December um twenty ahh 3rd meeting, ahh December 3rd meeting about live 
streaming, and also to include the comments that I had made at a public hearing 
um on the budget, which was in November. And then I made the comments in 
December 3rd, and then also made them at the December 17th meeting and our 
minutes today state that an amendment was made and it died for lack of support 
to add those and that was not my intention. I've never heard of anyone making an 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 10 
 

 
amendment to add their comments or deletions and stuff. So, I would like to ask 
the board to give the right to go back and add those comments that were made at 
my request, cause that's what I meant to do um at the December um 17th 
meeting, um those comments about stream about live streaming, and also about 
the budget issues with the supervisor’s salary and stuff. And I guess at this point 
I'm going to ask that these comments be included verbatim, since that's what the 
word the work rules say right now about this issue, if you recall what I'd said, and 
we can include this verbatim, was that um I repeated again in December 3rd 
meeting and December 17th, and now this will be the third time the January 20 
this meeting is that um I thought I had asked the board to consider, under the 
budget hearing, to um make all three elected officials the same pay and to not 
have the stipend of, I think it's 5,000 or $6,000 of supervisor’s role, you know, as a 
part of um to not have that stipend for a car lease. And I brought that up at those 
different meetings. And the streaming thing, I think, was done at the end of the 
meeting under it was either the board comments or other comments, where I 
brought it up, and I had asked the board, kind of more directed to the the chair, 
the supervisor, like, you know, should they do as a formal thing? And then um I 
know Supervisor Stumbo indicated they really weren't prepared, and I that was 
okay with me, and and she had said that we'll put that on the next agenda. And 
those are the comments that I wanted to have included and it’s kind of up to the 
board, whether you want to allow those comments to be in or not in, and we'll go 
from there, because I did not. Board rules say it's supposed to, I supposed to 
request a verbatim even though past practices we that has not, I don't ever 
remember us doing it that way. It was always kind of and I really don't want to do it 
that way, cause I know verbatim is so much work, and we under board rules, we 
can talk about that. Maybe there's another way that we can get our comments in. 
You know, whether we can write them. I don't. I don’t. I don't want to confuse this 
and talk about that board rule change at this point. So it really, really, it's up to the 
board. The board itself has authority to say, yeah, let Karen have her comments in 
there from that December 17th meeting or not and if you say no then it’s a dead 
issue and we’ll move on from there and I’ll make sure it’s verbatim or whatever the 
board rules say from now on. Thank you.” 
 















 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



NEW BUSINESS 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

MEMORANDUM 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
Debbie Swanson, Township Clerk 
Stan Eldridge, Township Treasurer 

Date:  January 29,2025 

Re: AMEND BOARD RULES TO RULE 5, SECTION 5.3 AND RULE 7, SECTION 5.3 AND 
OTHER MINOR CHANGES 

We are asking the board to amend board Rule 5 section 5.3 to add Determination of Quorum and 
Approval of Agenda to the Order of Business.  This allows us to align our rules with MTA and 
Robert’s Rules of Order. 

We are also asking to amend Rule 7 section 7.3 to eliminate this section requesting verbatim 
comments.  This change aligns with MTA and Robert’s Rules of Order. 

Thank you for your consideration. 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

MEMORANDUM 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From:  Debbie Swanson, Township Clerk 

Date: January 28, 2025 

Re: APPROVE “FIRST AMENDMENT TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE” WITH UPH 
YPSILANTI PROPERTY, LLC DBA CULVER’S EXTENDING THE APPROVAL 
PERIOD THROUGH AUGUST 15, 2025. 

Attorney Winters is recommending the board approve the “First Amendment to Real Estate Purchase 
Agreement” of the May 2, 2024 Purchase Agreement between the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and UPH 
Ypsilanti Property LLC dba Culver’s extending the approval period from the initial purchase through 
August 15, 2025. 

The attached “First Amendment Agreement to Real Estate Purchase Agreement” has been reviewed by 
township attorney Wm Douglas Winters. Culver’s continues to proceed in a good faith manner with all of 
the “due diligence requirements” pursuant to the initial Purchase Agreement that was executed on May 2, 
2024. 

Thank you for your consideration. 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 This First Amendment to Real Estate Purchase Agreement ("First Amendment") is 
entered into as of the ___ day of January, 2025, by and between The Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, a Michigan charter township ("Seller") and UPH Ypsilanti Property LLC, a 
Michigan limited liability company ("Buyer"). 

 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser entered into a Real Estate Purchase Agreement with an 
effective date of May 2, 2024 ("Purchase Agreement"), with respect to certain real property 
located at on the Northwest corner of the intersection of Huron Street and Brinker Way, 
Ypsilanti Charter Township, Michigan, the terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement 
being incorporated herein by reference for all purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, Purchaser and Seller desire to amend the Purchase Agreement pursuant to 
the terms and conditions of this First Amendment. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
and notwithstanding anything contained in the Purchase Agreement to the contrary, Purchaser 
and Seller agree as follows (capitalized terms used herein having the same meaning as defined in 
the Purchase Agreement unless otherwise specified herein): 

1. Recitals.  The parties agree the recitals set forth above are true and correct and 
incorporated by reference in this First Amendment.  

2. Approval Period.  The Purchase Agreement is hereby amended to extend the Approval 
Period through August 15, 2025. 

3. Miscellaneous. The Purchase Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof 
and all prior agreements, proposals, negotiations, understandings and correspondence between 
the parties in this regard, whether written or oral, are hereby superseded and merged herewith. In 
the event of a conflict between the terms of this First Amendment and the Purchase Agreement, 
the terms of this First Amendment shall control. Except as expressly amended by this First 
Amendment, all terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect.  

4. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed simultaneously in counterparts 
(by facsimile or otherwise), each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

[Signatures on Following Page] 



2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment as of the date 
set forth above. 

 
SELLER: 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti,  
a Michigan charter township, 
 
 
By:  ______________________________________  
Name:         
Its:         
 
  
By:  ______________________________________  
Name:         
Its:         

 
PURCHASER: 

 
UPH Ypsilanti Property LLC,  
a Michigan limited liability company 
 
 
By:  ______________________________________ 
Name: Charles Paisley 
Its: Authorized Signatory 

 
 
26807006. 



Township Supervisor 

Brenda L. Stumbo 

Township Clerk 

Debbie Swanson 

Township Treasurer 

Stan Eldridge 

YPSILANTI 
TOVvNSHIP 
-ASSESSMENT DEPARTMENT-

Trustees 

Karen Lovejoy Roe
John Newman II

Gloria Peterson  

LaResha Thornton 

TO: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Linda Gosselin 
Assessor 

January 24, 2025 

Brian McCleery 
Deputy Assessor 

Adoption of lnterlocal Agreement for Washtenaw County to Opt-Out of a 
Designated Assessor 

Attached are the Correspondence from Washtenaw County Equalization Director 
Samuel C. Spang and the lnterlocal Agreement for Washtenaw County to Opt-Out of a 
Designated Assessor. The interlocal agreement has been signed by the Washtenaw 
County Board of Commissioners. 

In his letter, Mr. Spang has itemized various reasons that Washtenaw County has 
chosen to opt out of the Designated Assessor Program. We agree with these reasons 
listed to opt out of the contract. Specifically, Washtenaw County has not been able to 
locate a MMAO Assessor to take on the responsibility. Secondly, Ypsilanti Township 
would have to pay a retainer on a yearly basis whether they utilized a Designated 
Assessor or not. Further, in the absence of a Designated Assessor, when required the 
State Tax Commission would appoint one or the individual local unit could 
independently hire a new assessor. 

Last of all, the Designated Assessor only steps in if a local jurisdiction fails the 
Assessor's Audit and does not make the corrective actions necessary to pass the Audit 
within the following year. In the past Assessor's Audits, Ypsilanti Township has received 
scores of 100%. Attached is the 2024 Certificate of Achievement and letter from the 
State Tax Commission. 

We request that the Ypsilanti Township Board approve entering into the agreement to 
Opt-Out of the Designated Assessor Program and for. Supervisor Stumbo to sign the 
agreement. 

ypsitownship.org • 7200 S. Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti, MI 48197 • 734.544.4000 

















Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 

To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 

Date:   January 29, 2025 

RE:     Recommendation to appoint Amy Kehrer to the Planning Commission with a term 
ending 12/31/2026 

The resignation of Caleb Copeland left a vacancy on the Planning Commission. To fill this 
position, I am recommending the appointment of Amy Kehrer due to her engineering expertise, 
bringing a new viewpoint to the commission. Attached please find her letter of interest and 
resume. 

Thank you for your consideration. 



Amy Kehrer

Ypsilanti, MI 48197

December 10, 2024

Board of Trustees
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Dear Members of the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees:

I am writing to express my interest in being considered for an appointment to the Ypsilanti
Township Planning Commission. I have lived in Ypsilanti Township since 2002, first on McKinley
Ave. (south of Ypsilanti High School) and now on .
As a long-time resident of Ypsilanti Township I am eager to contribute my skills and experience
to help shape the future development of our township.

For the past 14 years, I have been a stay-at-home mom and homeschooling educator, a role
that has allowed me to develop strong organizational, planning, and problem-solving skills.
Before this, I worked as a structural engineer with a master’s degree in civil engineering from
the University of Michigan. During my professional career, I gained significant experience in
planning, coordinating projects, and working closely with multidisciplinary teams to ensure the
successful completion of complex projects.

I am particularly excited about the opportunity to be involved in the Planning Commission’s work
in making recommendations on zoning plans, land use, and site development. I believe my skills
in organization, attention to detail, and long-term strategic thinking can contribute to sound
decision-making and help foster balanced growth within our township. As a long-term resident, I
am invested in ensuring that Ypsilanti Township remains a vibrant, sustainable, and welcoming
place for all its residents.

Thank you for considering my application,

Amy Kehrer





Professional Experience

Stay-at-Home Parent/Homeschool Teacher 
Ypsilanti, MI   2010 - present

● Homeschooling my 3 children for the past 14 years, incorporating a structured, 
organized, and adaptable curriculum in subjects such as mathematics, science, history, 
music, and language arts.

● Planned and executed educational activities, field trips, and community service projects, 
ensuring a balanced focus on academic learning and social development.

● Developed and managed daily and weekly schedules, meeting educational goals while 
adapting to the individual needs of each child.

● Implemented time-management techniques to balance family obligations, home upkeep, 
volunteer work, and personal development.

● Maintained detailed records of academic progress, extracurricular activities, and 
assessments, fostering an environment of accountability and achievement.

Engineer at Structural Design Incorporated (SDI)  
Ann Arbor, MI   2003 - 2009

● Designed, analyzed, and managed structural engineering projects, ensuring all designs 
met safety standards, client specifications, and regulatory requirements.

● Utilized advanced engineering principles and attention to detail to produce clear and 
accurate technical drawings and reports.

● Worked closely with architects, contractors, and project managers to coordinate project 
timelines, resolve issues, and ensure successful project completion.

● Applied problem-solving and analytical skills to resolve design and construction 
challenges, optimizing performance and safety.

● Managed multiple projects simultaneously, adhering to strict deadlines.



Motion to Amend the 2025 Budget (#2) 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $25,925 to $21,055,024 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

Move to increase the Environmental Services Fund budget by $36,998 to $4,295,669 

and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 2

FEBRUARY 4, 2025

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $25,925.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $25,925.00

Net Revenues $25,925.00

Expenditures: PPE & First Aid Supplies 101-270-760.000 $25,925.00

Net Expenditures $25,925.00

226 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FUND Total Increase $36,998.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 226-000-699.999 $36,998.00

Net Revenues $36,998.00

Expenditures: Contractual/Rubbish Pickup 226-528-804.001 $22,680.00

Contractual/Yardwaste Pickup 226-528-804.003 $6,238.00

Recycling Pick-Up Curbside 226-528-804.007 $8,080.00

Net Expenditures $36,998.00

Request to carryforward the approved fall protection systems from Premier Safety & Service for Hydro and 

Compost approved 10/14/2024. This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for rubbish, yard waste and recycling, which is based on number of residential 

pickups. The beginning count for budget calculations for the Waste Management contract was 15,116 and in 

2024-2025 the count has increased to 15,318. This has caused a need for an incease to the 2025 budget 

numbers. This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

1 of 1



AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 



OTHER BUSINESS 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS


	February 4, 2025
	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes of January 21, 2025
	Statements and Checks, February 4, 2025
	Attorney Report
	New Business
	1. Amend the Township Board Rules
	2. First Amendment to Real Estate Purchase
	3. Adoption of Interlocal Agreement
	4. Planning Commission Appointment
	5. Budget Amendment #2
	Authorizations and Bids
	Other Business
	Public Comments
	Board Member Comments



